VACCINATION:

What the Bible Says and What Scientism Admits

A Bible Study which reveals that the Scriptures have one true position on Vaccination, which exhorts every conscientious Christian to compare this evidence with modern-day Science.

By

Silent Witness

Contents

Author's Introduction	3
Chapter 1	
Analysing the Introductory Texts	5
The very foundation of vaccination counteracted by Scripture	5
Our bodies are not solely our own; they are God's, so we cannot conscientiously vacinate	8
Applying the Bible principles to the reality of vaccine ingredients and preparations	
Some Scripturally Abominable Vaccine Ingredients	9
Chapter 2	
A Shocking Biblical Link between Vaccination and Sorcery 2	4
Examining Sorcery as expressed in the Bible	4
How to decipher Drug Medication from God-given Natural Remedies 2	28
Vaccines used as the Last-day Pharmakeia of choice to deceive all nations	30
Chapter 3	
Vaccination and the Law of God	3
Vaccination and the Commandments in general	4
Vaccination and the sixth Commandment in particular	8
Conclusion 4	. 1

Author's Introduction

Beloved God-fearing brothers and sisters: it is with much graveness and soberness of mind that we are bidden to approach the issue of vaccination – especially at this imminent hour – strictly from the inspired perspective of the Holy Scriptures. The author has found from initial research that no exponent within the last 100 years at the very least, has made any notable attempt, under God, to give an explicitly Scriptural presentation on this hugely polemical issue. It is indeed startling that expositions of this type are scarcely to be found (if any at all), though there has been so much public debate about vaccinations, especially from the 20th into the 21st century. Today, if one may hear a critical vaccine position, you will be privileged if you hear a few Scriptures, if any at all. Defences of vaccine conscientious objection today are much more loaded with, science pitted against science, unwarranted concessions, and if any can be supplied, an occasional theological opinion on the matter. With the debate yet raging in our 21st century, and with the majority governmental consensus seeking to mandate vaccinations for all, it is clear that the current efforts at vaccine conscientious objection, though tried, have been failing up till now.

Beloved, for those who profess to truly uphold the Faith of the Scriptures, going underground without proving God's Word is not the option! Continually trying to flee from the claws of the drug-based, allopathic medical establishment is not the option! And most certainly – resolving to take inoculated doses of cultured diseases and poisons directly within your person, and that of your innocent children without publicly affirming the *Thus saith the Lord* on the matter – that cannot be an option for the true Bible-believing Christian! Therefore, with the *invention* of vaccination now being promulgated as a worldwide mandatory solution to cure suspect epidemics, it is more incumbent than ever before in this world's history, that every Bible-believing Christian know *exactly* what God says about vaccination and its underpinnings. And God's Word has answers, beloved – more than we could even image – if we took the time prayerfully to search it out. This study will

be such an effort. Let us approach this situation solemnly, for lives, livelihoods and even salvation, is counted in the potential cost. It is my sincere hope to prayerfully approach this subject aright, and that like David, all of us may receive the scriptural blessing: "Open thou mine eyes, that I may behold wondrous things out of thy law." (Ps.119:18). May God bless us all to this end. Amen.

Yours truly, Silent Witness

Chapter 1

Analysing the Introductory Texts

What thoughts can we garner about vaccination based on the following Biblical texts?

Mark 2:17 (KJV) When Jesus heard it, he saith unto them, They that are whole have no need of the physician, but they that are sick: I came not to call the righteous, but sinners to repentance.

Psalms 139:13-16 (KJV) ¹³For thou hast possessed my reins: thou hast covered me in my mother's womb. ¹⁴I will praise thee; for I am fearfully and wonderfully made: marvellous are thy works; and that my soul knoweth right well. ¹⁵My substance was not hid from thee, when I was made in secret, and curiously wrought in the lowest parts of the earth. ¹⁶Thine eyes did see my substance, yet being unperfect; and in thy book all my members were written, which in continuance were fashioned, when as yet there was none of them.

Ecclesiates 7:29 (KJV) Lo, this only have I found, that God hath made man upright; but they have sought out many inventions.

The very foundation of vaccination counteracted by Scripture

Beloved, the Saviour of our world, the all-knowing Beginner of the creation of God, the One who came to earth in the same, fallen human frame as us, said these words:

"They that are whole have no need of the physician, but they that are sick." (Mark 2:17). This statement alone should speak volumes to any true Bible-believer. Jesus tells us that anyone who is *whole* – who has autonomous strength and force of body, faculties, etc. – does not need a physician. Jesus was the Great Physician; no human could compare with His infinite knowledge, even of physiology. And Jesus tells you that if your body is naturally intact and all your faculties are functional, whether you be an infant or elderly, you do not need a doctor. Period. The One who made everyone of us said this; who is any one of us to gainsay it?

So therefore, what is one doing when one takes a perfectly healthy child – one that is *whole* – and injects foreign chemicals directly into their bloodstream, bypassing all their God-given, natural bodily defences, literally moments after their birth into this world? Did not Christ pronounce that such a *whole* child has no need of the intervention of any physician, no medical intervention whatsoever? So then, what is the interventionist doing when they employ inoculations into the bodies of sound human beings? They are fighting against Christ. They are fighting against the instructions of the Great Divine Physician. Can we not see that, at the very least, proponents of mandatory vaccinations are coercing Christ's sincere followers to deny His instructions? That they are denying our freedom of conscience and religion to obey our Saviour? And beloved, we are just getting started here.

Because the prophet David was furthermore inspired to show us just how much God, and not man, is responsible for the creation, harmony, and preservation of the bodily frame of every human being. In Psalm 139:13, David said the Lord possessed his reins - the Lord fashioned his very mind. David said the Lord had covered him - protected him from all danger (including communicable diseases) - even within his mother's womb. David saw himself – like every other innocent human being – to be fearfully and wonderfully made, created by divine supervision and detail. Could the God of heaven, our all-knowing Creator have missed the opportunity to protect His innocent creatures from all the eventualities of this life? Did God forget that smallpox, measles, polio, whooping cough, mumps, rubella, etc., were to come in the future, and somehow the "brilliant" scientists have made a one-up on God? That these scientists were so much more brilliant than God to conjure that one can take a pure, healthy child – a human being with a perfect bill of health – and make them even better than perfect by injecting inorganic, chemical, cross-species doses of "health-giving" poisons into their pure bodies? Nonsense! Madness! Beloved, will you trust the wisdom of God that made everything perfect in its original form? Or will you believe scientism's risk-filled vaccine propaganda experiment? Indeed,

vaccination did not come from the hand of God, but by the carnal, sinful inventions of self-deceived men.

Vaccines fall verily into the category of vices which David's own son, Solomon, sought to rebuke, in the same train as his father. As he said in Ecclesisates, God made man upright – lacking nothing in form and feature – but in spite of this, still man has sought out many inventions. (Eccl.7:29). Whilst many blindly believe that vaccines have saved the world, they do so with an utter ignorance of the fact that popularized consent for vaccination is actually an invention of the last century, really coming into stream in the 1960s. In other words, whether you believe the world is approximately 6000 years old (which is true), or whether you believe it is millions or billions of years old, the fact is that vaccines have only been a part of mainstream medical acceptance for less than 100 years. The question everyone should ask is: if vaccines have been the world-saver, why didn't the world go extinct over the last 5900 years, or the imaginary millions and billions of the Bible sceptics? Answer: as the Bible accurately teaches, human beings had always been endowed with God-given natural faculties to fight disease. The immune systems of all of God's creation were there before the last measly (nay, comparatively microscopic) 100 years for which vaccines have come popularly on the scene. The fact is that vaccines are not the saviours of humanity. The scientists would like you to believe that, but that is just a blind, utterly egotistical and deluded notion. Jesus Christ existed eternally before vaccines; He is the same yesterday, today and forever. Jesus Christ still is, and always will be, the only Saviour of humanity, even the "saviour of the body" (Eph.5:23). The human race has survived because of God and Christ's watch-care; not because of patented, for-profit, vials of poison:

Lamentations 3:22,23 (KJV) ²²It is of the LORD'S mercies that we are not consumed, because his compassions fail not. ²³They are new every morning: great is thy faithfulness.

Malachi 3:6 (KJV) For I am the LORD, I change not; therefore ye sons of Jacob are not consumed.

James 1:17 (KJV) Every good gift and every perfect gift is from above, and cometh down from the Father of lights, with whom is no variableness, neither shadow of turning.

Our bodies are not solely our own; they are God's, so we cannot conscientiously vaccinate

Beloved, Bible religion instructs us not to place anything in our bodies that God has not expressly prescribed. The ONLY things God has prescribed for us to receive within our bodies are pure foods and medicinal herbs (Gen.1:29, 3:18; Exo.12:8; Psa.104:14-15; Prov.15:17; Ezek.47:12; Heb.6:7; Rev.22:2). We are bidden by God NOT to take in substances such as these: [1] drugs, or any form of poisonous, debilitating chemicals (Job 20:16; Psa.58:4; Nah.3:4; Gal.5:19-20; Rev.18:23, 21:8); [2] *unclean foods* (Lev.11; Deut.14:7-21); [3] *blood nor fat* (Gen.9:4; Lev.3:17, 7:22-27, 17:12-14, 19:26; Deut.12:16,23-24); and even [4] flesh foods in general (Num.11:4-23,31-35; Psa.78:30-31; Prov.23:20; Dan.1:5,8,12-17; Isa.22:12-14), are NOT prescribed by God. Once you have the conscious opportunity – as a Bible-believer and Christ-follower – to fulfil these Scripture stipulations, there is no excuse to do otherwise. We are accountable to Christ for the things we have allowed to affect our bodies. As Christians, our bodies are not our own to do the same things which may be acceptable to the world. God is our final judge, and if we are His children, we are morally bound to do that which He has recommended, for He knows our frame better than any other human authority could ever tell us:

2 Corinthians 5:10 (KJV) For we must all appear before the judgment seat of Christ; that every one may receive the *things done in his body*, according to that he hath done, whether it be good or bad.

1 Corinthians 6:19,20 (KJV) ¹⁹What? know ye not that *your body is the temple* of the Holy Ghost which is in you, which ye have of God, and *ye are not your own?* ²⁰For ye are bought with a price: therefore *glorify God in your body*, and in your spirit, which are God's.

Applying the Bible principles to the reality of Vaccine Ingredients and <u>Preparations</u>

Beloved, it would have been bad enough to disobey God and suffer as a result of consciously ingesting into our bodies that which He has divinely prohibited. But the matter is infinitely worsened when nearly all vaccine ingredients incorporate many of the forbidden substances mentioned earlier, which, through the process of

vaccination, these ingredients are not *ingested* through our digestive tract, but rather *injected directly* into one's bloodstream. The process of vaccination intentionally bypasses all the relevant digestive and immune mechanisms which could be called into action to stave off preliminary toxins. Through vaccine inoculation, we say once again that the admitted harmful substances go *directly* into the bloodstream – so if your bloodstream mechanisms cannot manage the overwhelming toxicity, a chronic state of debility will result. Nay worse, in the most unfortunate cases of this vaccine-induced toxic overload, it is not a far-fetched observation to realize that numerous deaths have occurred as a direct result of these inoculations. Indeed, adverse events and even deaths from vaccinations are documented realities, and you do have honest scientific research that is willing to admit this.¹

Yet medical scientism doesn't stop there, but it goes even worse another step as totally unthinkable phenomena, instinctively foreign to the human constitution and conscience, are also routinely added to vaccine ingredients. What will follow here is a breakdown of some of these "ingredients," all of which listed, we will see, are abominable to the human constitution. To be thoroughly clear, and because it seems that vaccine "ingredients" are routinely shrouded in scientific jargon to hide what they actually are to the common person, I will just add a layman-language analysis of those ingredients which shall be identified below. It just takes simple, patient online research to find out these things – no advanced scientific knowledge required. If you are literate and operate by your God-given common sense you can find these out for yourself. Lastly, respective scientific sheets on each of these chemical ingredients are also hyperlinked for you to verify for yourself online. Well, here we go:

Some Scripturally Abominable Vaccine Ingredients

1. Human Diploid Cell Tissue Cultures

These are lab-reproduced cells from electively aborted babies, the abortions of which were done in the 1960s. In other words, unborn children were conscientiously killed in the womb all the way back in the 1960s, and cell samples from these murdered

^{1 &}lt;u>https://www.globalresearch.ca/america-iatrogenic-epidemic-drug-vaccine-induced-disor</u> ders/5687394

http://vaccinepapers.org/high-mortality-dtp-vaccine/

 $[\]underline{https://www.globalresearch.ca/measles-vaccines-kill-more-people-than-measles-cdc-data-proves/5429736}$

precious ones have been continuously replicated in laboratories since then, in order to produce cell cultures which form the basis of numerous vaccines to this day. The cell culture titled, "WI-38" was female, and the one titled, "MRC-5" was male. There are other cell cultures of this kind which can be found in the scientific literature. The links will also tell you that these two precious ones were both 3 months in the womb at the time of their murder. The details are below:

WI-38

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/WI-38

MRC-5

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/MRC-5

2. Culture Media

Whilst the term *culture media* would communicate an entirely different thought in the minds of the common man, in scientism jargon, the term takes on something of a kind of "insider" definition. I was only privileged to locate a workable explanation of *culture media* in a scientific paper:

Cell cultures are often propagated in collagen-containing media. Primary cell cultures are made up of cells taken directly from living tissues, and may contain various types of cells, such as fibroblasts, epithelial cells, and endothelial cells. For the purpose of vaccine production and research, cell cultures are designed to include only one particular strain of cells.²

So what they mean by *culture media* is, cell specimens taken from various organisms which form the various kinds of bases upon which the different vaccines are produced. These *culture media* are like the framework, the binding-blocks essential to the cultivation of the vaccine. It is with these base *culture media* that viruses and excipients are added and blended to form vaccines.

Now what we especially need to know here, is what kind of organisms are used as *culture media* in the vaccines, and how are these *culture media* processed. This is where our ignorance may have seemed to be bliss before, but our new-found

Olear, Vladimir & Štefkoviková, Mária & Kristufkova, Zuzana. (2015). HUMAN TISSUE CULTURES FOR VACCINES PRODUCTION. 9. 2-6

knowledge will require future action. Because the *culture media* of nearly all vaccines fall within the same principle of ingesting foreign, forbidden, human, animal and insect specimen. The only difference is that for vaccination the effects will be much worse because these specimens are injected directly.

So what kind of organisms are used as *culture media*? What are the kinds of cell specimen which vaccine manufacturers are willing to admit are in their vaccines at this time? Take a look at some of them, as I try to describe them in layman's terms where needed:

- -Aborted baby cells [WI-38; MRC-5; WI-26 VA4; IMR-90; PER.C6; HEK 293; Namalwa]³
- -Monkey kidney, lung cells [*Vero* cell culture; Rhesus fetal lung tissue culture]
- -Chicken kidneys cells, embryos
- -Dog kidneys cells [Madin Darby Canine Kidney (MDCK) cell protein]
- -Mouse brain culture
- -Insect cell lines
- -Moth cells [Trichoplusia ni cells]
- -Yeast

By this point, you may think that on the issue of *culture media* this is as bad as it gets. But sadly it gets even worse. For, as abominable as these sources of *culture media* would be in their natural form to the human constitution, scientism admits that the great majority of cell specimen used today are either totally synthetic or semi-synthetic. This means that the already suspect base cell specimen are in many cases completely unnatural knock-offs of the original cell sources; they are laboratory-modified, genetically-modified by default. These things may sound absolutely astounding to the candid mind, nigh unbelievable to common moral sensibilities!

So before we go any further with what would be considered such damning characterizations, I yield this publicly available table, under the title, "List of Vaccine Ingredients." It is freely available from *Wikipedia Encyclopedia*, with its cumulative evidence admittedly referenced from the US-based *Centers for Disease Control and Prevention* (CDC) and the *Food and Drug Administration* (FDA).⁴ My ongoing analysis of other suspect vaccine ingredients, flows from the fact that the evidence shown in this table – which cross-references with the first-hand evidence

³ ibid.

⁴ https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/List_of_vaccine_ingredients - Last updated May 2020

– is not conjecture, but fact. These repulsive things would not be admitted to be in the vaccines if they were not there. You may peruse this table and additional correspondent links as we go forward:

Vaccine	Culture media	Excipients
Adenovirus vaccine	Dulbecco's Modified Eagle Medium, human diploid fibroblast cell culture (WI-38)	Acetone, alcohol, anhydrous lactose, castor oil, cellulose acetate phthalate, dextrose, D-fructose, D-mannose, FD&C Yellow #6 aluminum lake dye, fetal bovine serum, human serum albumin, magnesium stearate, micro crystalline cellulose, plasdone C, Polacrilin potassium, potassium phosphate, sodium bicarbonate, sucrose
Anthrax vaccine (Biothrax)	Puziss–Wright medium 1095, synthetic or semisynthetic	Aluminum hydroxide, amino acids, benzethonium chloride, formaldehyde, inorganic salts and sugars, vitamins
BCG (Bacillus Calmette-Guérin) (TICE BCG)	Synthetic or semisynthetic	Asparagine, citric acid, lactose, glycerin, iron ammonium citrate, magnesium sulfate, potassium phosphate
DTaP (Daptacel)	Cohen-Wheeler or Stainer- Scholte media, synthetic or semisynthetic	Aluminum phosphate, formaldehyde, Glutaraldehyde, 2-phenoxyethanol
DTaP (Infanrix)	Cohen-Wheeler or Stainer-Scholte media, Lathan medium derived from bovine casein, Linggoud-Fenton medium derived from bovine extract, synthetic or semisynthetic	Aluminum hydroxide, bovine extract, formaldehyde, glutaraldhyde, polysorbate 80
DTaP (Tripedia)	Cohen-Wheeler or Stainer- Scholte media, synthetic or semisynthetic	Aluminum potassium sulfate, ammonium sulfate, bovine extract, formaldehyde, gelatin, peptone, polysorbate 80, sodium phosphate, thimerosal
DTaP-Hib (TriHIBit)	Synthetic or semisynthetic	Aluminum potassium sulfate, ammonium sulfate, bovine extract, formaldehyde or formalin, gelatin, polysorbate 80, sucrose, thimerosal
DTaP-IPV (Kinrix)	Vero (monkey kidney) cell culture, synthetic or semisynthetic	Aluminum hydroxide, calf serum, formaldehyde, glutaraldehyde, lactalbumin hydrolysate, neomycin sulfate, polymyxin B, polysorbate 80
DTaP-HepB- IPV (Pediarix)	Bovine protein, Lathan medium derived from bovine casein, Linggoud–Fenton medium derived from bovine extract, Vero (monkey kidney) cell culture, synthetic or semisynthetic	Aluminum hydroxide, aluminum phosphate, calf serum, lactalbumin hydrolysate, formaldehyde, glutaraldhyde, neomycin sulfate, polymyxin B, polysorbate 80, yeast protein

DTaP-IPV- Hib (Pentacel)	Synthetic or semisynthetic	Aluminum phosphate, bovine serum albumin, formaldehyde, glutaraldehyde, MRC-5 cellular protein, neomycin, polymyxin B sulfate, polysorbate 80, 2-phenoxyethanol
DT vaccine (diphtheria vaccine plus tetanus vaccine) (Sanofi)	Synthetic or semisynthetic	Aluminum potassium sulfate, bovine extract, formaldehyde, thimerosal
DT vaccine (Massachusetts)	Synthetic or semisynthetic	Aluminum hydroxide, formaldehyde or formalin
Hib vaccine (ActHIB)	Synthetic or semisynthetic	Ammonium sulfate, formaldehyde, sucrose
Hib vaccine (PedvaxHib)	Synthetic or semisynthetic	Aluminum hydroxyphosphate sulfate
Hib vaccine (Hiberix)	Semisynthetic	Formaldehyde, lactose
Hib-HepB (Comvax)	Synthetic or semisynthetic, yeast or yeast extract	Amorphous aluminum hydroxyphosphate sulfate, amino acids, dextrose, formaldehyde, hemin chloride, mineral salts, nicotinamide adenine dinucleotide, potassium aluminum sulfate, sodium borate, soy peptone, yeast protein
Hepatitis A vaccine (Havrix)	Human diploid tissue culture (MRC-5)	Aluminum hydroxide, amino acid supplement, formalin, MRC-5 cellular protein, neomycin sulfate, phosphate buffers, polysorbate 20
Hepatitis A vaccine (Vaqta)	Human diploid tissue culture (MRC-5)	Amorphous aluminum hydroxyphosphate sulfate, bovine albumin or serum, formaldehyde, MRC-5 cellular protein, sodium borate
Hepatitis B vaccine (Engerix-B)	Yeast or yeast extract	Aluminum hydroxide, phosphate buffers, yeast protein
Hepatitis B vaccine (Recombivax HB)	Yeast or yeast extract	Amorphous aluminum hydroxyphosphate sulfate, amino acids, dextrose, formaldehyde, mineral salts, potassium aluminum sulfate, soy peptone, yeast protein
HepA-HepB vaccine (Twinrix)	Human diploid tissue culture (MRC-5), yeast or yeast extract	Aluminum hydroxide, aluminum phosphate, amino acids, formalin, MRC-5 cells, neomycin sulfate, phosphate buffers, polysorbate 20, yeast protein
Human papillomavirus (HPV) (Cervarix)	Trichoplusia ni cells	Aluminum hydroxide, amino acids, lipids, mineral salts, sodium dihydrogen phosphate dehydrate, type 16 viral protein L1, type 18 viral protein L1, vitamins
Human papillomavirus (HPV) (Gardasil)	Yeast or yeast extract	Amino acids, amorphous aluminum hydroxyphosphate sulfate, carbohydrates, L-histidine, mineral salts, polysorbate 80, sodium borate, vitamins, yeast protein

Influenza vaccine (Afluria)	Chicken embryo	Beta-propiolactone, calcium chloride, dibasic sodium phosphate, egg protein, monobasic potassium phosphate, monobasic sodium phosphate, neomycin sulfate, polymyxin B, potassium chloride, sodium taurodeoxychoalate, thimerosal (multi-dose vials only)
Influenza vaccine (Agriflu)	Chicken embryo	Egg proteins, formaldehyde, polysorbate 80, cetyltrimethylammonium bromide, neomycin sulfate, kanamycin
Influenza vaccine (Fluad)	Chicken embryo	Squalene, polysorbate 80, sorbitan trioleate, sodium citrate dehydrate, citric acid monohydrate, neomycin, kanamycin, barium, egg proteins, CTAB(cetyltrimethylammonium bromide), formaldehyde
Influenza vaccine (Fluarix)	Chicken embryo	Formaldehyde, octoxynol-10 (Triton X-100), α-tocopheryl hydrogen succinate, polysorbate 80 (Tween 80), hydrocortisone, gentamicin sulfate, ovalbumin, sodium deoxycholate, sucrose, phosphate buffer
Influenza vaccine (Flublok)	insect cell line (expresSF+*)	Monobasic sodium phosphate, dibasic sodium phosphate, polysorbate 20, baculovirus and host cell proteins, baculovirus and cellular DNA, Triton X-100, lipids, vitamins, amino acids, mineral salts
Influenza vaccine (Flucelvax)	Madin Darby Canine Kidney (MDCK) cell protein	Madin Darby Canine Kidney (MDCK) cell protein, MDCK cell DNA, polysorbate 80, cetyltrimethlyammonium bromide, β-propiolactone, phosphate buffer
Influenza vaccine (Flulaval)	Chicken embryo	Formaldehyde, á-tocopheryl hydrogen succinate, polysorbate 80, sodium deoxycholate, thimerosal, ovalbumin
Influenza vaccine (Fluvirin)	Chicken embryo	Beta-propiolactone, egg protein, neomycin, nonylphenol ethoxylate, polymyxin, thimerosal (multi-dose containers), thimerosal[2] (single-dose syringes)
Influenza vaccine (Fluzone)	Chicken embryo	Egg protein, formaldehyde, gelatin (standard formulation only), octylphenol ethoxylate (Triton X-100), sodium phosphate, thimerosal (multi-dose containers only)
Influenza vaccine (FluMist)	Chicken kidney cells, chicken embryo	Arginine, dibasic potassium phosphate, egg protein, ethylenediaminetetraacetic acid, gentamicin sulfate, hydrolyzed porcine gelatin, monobasic potassium phosphate, monosodium glutamate, sucrose
Japanese encephalitis vaccine (JE-Vax)	Mouse brain culture	Formaldehyde or formalin, gelatin, mouse serum protein, polysorbate 80, thimerosal

Japanese encephalitis vaccine (Ixiaro)	Vero (monkey kidney) cell culture	Aluminum hydroxide, bovine serum albumin, formaldehyde, protamine sulfate, sodium metabisulphite
Meningococcal vaccine (Menactra)	Modified Mueller-Miller medium, Mueller-Hinton agar, Watson-Scherp medium	Formaldehyde (Each 0.5 mL dose may contain residual amounts of formaldehyde of less than 2.66 µg (0.000532%), by calculation), phosphate buffers[3]
Meningococcal vaccine (Menomune)	Watson–Scherp media, Mueller–Hinton agar	Lactose, thimerosal (multi-dose vial only)
Meningococcal vaccine (Menveo)	Franz complete medium	Amino acids, formaldehyde, yeast extract
MMR vaccine (MMR-II)	Human diploid tissue culture (WI-38), Medium 199	Amino acids, fetal bovine serum, glutamate, hydrolyzed gelatin, neomycin, recombinant human serum albumin, sodium phosphate, sorbitol, sucrose, vitamins
MMRV vaccine (ProQuad)	Human diploid tissue cultures (MRC-5, WI-38), Medium 199	Bovine calf serum, dibasic potassium phosphate, dibasic sodium phosphate, human albumin, human serum albumin, hydrolyzed gelatin, monobasic potassium phosphate, monosodium L-glutamate, MRC-5 cellular protein, neomycin, sodium bicarbonate, sorbitol, sucrose, potassium chloride
Pneumococcal vaccine (Pneumovax)	Bovine protein	Phenol
Pneumococcal vaccine (Prevnar)	Soy peptone broth	Aluminum phosphate, ammonium sulfate, casamino acid, polysorbate 80, succinate buffer, yeast
Polio vaccine (IPV – Ipol)	Vero (monkey kidney) cell culture, Medium 199	Calf serum protein, formaldehyde, neomycin, 2-phenoxyethanol, polymyxin B, streptomycin
Polio vaccine (IPV – Poliovax)	Human diploid tissue culture (MRC-5)	Sodium chloride
Rabies vaccine (Imovax)	Human diploid tissue culture (MRC-5)	Albumin, MRC-5 cells, neomycin sulfate, phenol
Rabies vaccine (RabAvert, Greedo)	Rhesus fetal lung tissue culture, chicken embryo	Amphotericin B, beta-propiolactone, chicken protein, chlortetracycline, human serum albumin, neomycin, ovalbumin, polygeline (processed bovine 14 gelatin), potassium glutamate
Rotavirus vaccine (RotaTeq)	Vero (monkey kidney) cell culture	Fetal bovine serum, sodium citrate, sodium phosphate monobasic monohydrate, sodium hydroxide, sucrose, polysorbate 80
Rotavirus vaccine (ROTARIX)	Dulbecco's Modified Eagle Medium (DMEM)	Amino acids, calcium carbonate, dextran, sorbitol, sucrose, vitamins, xanthan
Td vaccine (Decavac)	Mueller–Miller medium, synthetic or semisynthetic	Aluminum potassium sulfate, bovine muscle tissue, formaldehyde, peptone, thimerosal[2]

Td vaccine (Mass)	Modified Mueller's media, synthetic or semisynthetic	Aluminum phosphate, ammonium phosphate, bovine extracts, formaldehyde, thimerosal (some multi-dose vials)
Tdap vaccine (Adacel)	Mueller's growth medium, Mueller-Miller casamino acidmedium(without beef heart infusion), synthetic or semisynthetic	Aluminum phosphate, ammonium sulfate, formaldehyde, glutaraldehyde, 2-phenoxyethanol
Tdap vaccine (Boostrix)	Fenton media with bovine casein, Lathan medium derived from bovine casein, Linggoud–Fenton medium derived from bovine extract, Stainer–Scholte liquid medium, synthetic or semisynthetic	Aluminum hydroxide, bovine extract, formaldehyde, glutaraldehyde, polysorbate 80
Typhoid vaccine (inactivated – Typhim VI)	Synthetic or semisynthetic	Disodium phosphate, monosodium phosphate, phenol, polydimethylsiloxane, hexadecyltrimethylammonium bromide
Typhoid vaccine (oral – Ty21a/Vivotif)		Amino acids, ascorbic acid, casein, dextrose, galactose, lactose, sucrose, yeast extract
Vaccinia (ACAM2000)	Vero (monkey kidney) cell culture	Glycerin, human serum albumin, mannitol, neomycin, phenol, polymyxin B
Varicella vaccine (Varivax)	Human diploid tissue cultures (MRC-5 and WI-38)	Dibasic sodium phosphate, ethylenediamine tetra acetic acid[sodium (EDTA), fetal bovine serum, gelatin, glutamate, monobasic potassium phosphate, monobasic sodium phosphate, monosodium L-glutamate, MRC-5 DNA and cellular protein, neomycin, phosphate, potassium chloride, sucrose
Yellow fever vaccine (YF-Vax)	Chicken embryo	Egg protein, gelatin, sorbitol
Zoster vaccine (Zostavax)	Human diploid tissue cultures (MRC-5 and WI-38)	Bovine calf serum, dibasic sodium phosphate, hydrolyzed porcine gelatin, monosodium L-glutamate, MRC-5 DNA and cellular protein, monobasic potassium phosphate, neomycin, potassium chloride, sucrose

3. Human Serum Albumin

This is literal human blood protein, dressed up in fancy terms. Equipped with voluminous citations, the Wikipedia article on *human serum albumin* informs us that it is extracted from the human liver.⁵ But the question we must all ask ourselves is, whose liver? Not yours nor mine, but another human being which we know nothing of. Neither are we informed as to how this blood extraction is processed.

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Human_serum_albumin

We know God's Word tells us not to eat blood nor fat (Lev.3:17). Even the least pious among humanity would count cannibalism (the consumption of any human parts) as an abominable act. Then how is it acceptable that we would be thoroughly repulsed from eating any form of human blood, but then it seems okay to directly inject that same blood, foreign blood, into our bodies? If by the natural means of ingestion, such a substance would be immediately regurgitated, and with good cause, how is it that we could feel safe from having it invasively injected, when our body's primary digestive capacities instruct us to have none of it? Beloved, the arbitrary injection of foreign, unverifiable human blood, into our bodies is against God's Word, and is against nature. This is exactly why this chemical safety sheet for *human serum albumin* says, "do not take internally" and that it is "harmful if swallowed". This could never be safe for your body, whichever way they would want to administer it.

https://www.caymanchem.com/msdss/400344m.pdf

4. Fetal bovine serum

A simple, frank definition of *fetal bovine serum* comes from the Wikipedia encyclopedia article bearing its name: "Fetal bovine serum, as with the vast majority of animal serum used in cell culture, is produced from blood collected at commercial slaughterhouses from dairy cattle that also supply meat intended for human consumption." In all plainness, what this means is that dairy cows, generally kept pregnant in order to produce milk, are after a time deemed obsolete, and finally slaughtered while pregnant with their unborn, in order to be sold as meat. It is obvious also that not only the flesh of the traumatized, gestating cow is being sought, but even the blood of its unborn is especially valued for vaccine preparation systems. It is a system of institutionalized, traumatic, double animal murder. If you, according to biblical standards do not eat flesh nor blood; if you, according to biblical standards, regard the life of the animal creation (Prov.12:10), then you cannot as a Christian conscientiously consent to this system, of which many vaccine preparations depend.

With all this, it would be absolutely criminal to tell the conscientious public that any consumption of *fetal bovine serum* could be morally or healthfully acceptable. Indeed, even with the notoriously ambiguous safety sheets of many vaccine ingredients, for *fetal bovine serum* it still has to be admitted that it, "May cause skin irritation; may be harmful if absorbed through the skin; may cause eye irritation;

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fetal bovine serum

may be harmful if inhaled; may be irritating to mucous membranes and upper respiratory tract; and may be harmful if swallowed." I believe the verdict is clear, and you can explore the references below for yourself.

http://www.serumsourceintl.com/pdf/msds fbs.pdf

Bovine Serum Albumin from ThermoFisher Scientific

5. Formaldehyde

The online *Encyclopedia Britannica* says that, "Pure formaldehyde is a colourless, flammable gas with a strong pungent odour. It is extremely irritating to the mucous membranes and is associated with certain types of cancer in humans and other animals. Formaldehyde is classified as a human carcinogen (cancer-causing substance)." That being said, it should be clearly discerned as criminal negligence at best, or criminal intent at worst, that a substance which the US Environmental Protection Agency lists in the top 10% of most hazardous and damaging chemicals, could be routinely added to so many of these "life-saving" vaccines. This substance is so blatantly notorious as a biocide (a chemical killer of biological processes), as is utilized in embalming (preserving the dead), that the European Union has been deliberating over banning the substance entirely from its regional markets. 10

As you may conduct your own research on the effects of formaldehyde, I leave you two quick references – an official chemical safety sheet for formaldehyde, and a website which shows more than 100 side effects of unnatural formaldehyde exposure.

https://www.nj.gov/health/eoh/rtkweb/documents/fs/0946.pdf

https://healthwyze.org/reports/60-vaccine-secrets

6. Mercury

The fact that compounds of this substance are still fought for by scientism to be used in vaccines and other inventions, despite centuries of documented evidence which exists for the overt toxicity of mercury upon the human body, should reveal to any candid mind that some overarching agenda is at work which has *nothing* to

- 7 <u>http://www.serumsourceintl.com/pdf/msds_fbs.pdf</u>
- 8 <u>https://www.britannica.com/science/formaldehyde</u>
- 9 https://www.funerals360.com/blog/burial/the_truth_about_embalming/
- 10 https://www.bbc.com/news/uk-politics-46294432

do with healing people, but systematically harming them. One online encyclopedia describes mercury like this:

Mercury and all of its compounds are extremely poisonous, and mercury is one of the few substances known to have no natural function in the human body. Classified as a heavy metal, mercury is difficult for the body to eliminate. This means that even small amounts can act as a cumulative poison, collecting over a long period of time until they reach dangerous levels. Humans can absorb mercury through any mucous membrane and through the skin. Its vapor can be inhaled, and mercury can be ingested in foods such as fish, eggs, meat, and grain. In the body, mercury primarily affects the nervous system, liver, and kidneys. Mercury poisoning symptoms include tremors, tunnel vision, loss of balance, slurred speech, and unpredictable emotions. The phrase "mad as a hatter" owes its origin to symptoms of mercury poisoning that afflicted hatmakers in the 1800s, when a mercury compound was used to prepare beaver fur and felt materials.¹¹

The toxic qualities of mercury have been known for hundreds of years.

Even with the most generous definition of mercury you can give, you cannot honestly escape acknowledging that its very existence, and our proximity to it, is interconnected with a clear toxic impact on the human body. Even the World Health Organization – wracked as it is by private, commercial interests – admits of mercury's inherent toxicity¹² (though it conveniently neglects to mention mercury's continued existence in vaccines). Mercury and its compounds are routinely placed in the top 10 most dangerous substances on the face of the earth. Yet you will still find *Thimerosal*, the choice mercury compound used in vaccines, being included in trace amounts alongside other vaccine ingredients, in commercial vaccine brands. This is yet the case, despite huge public outcry during the late 1990s, and the assurance of the vaccine manufacturing community that mercury would basically be taken completely out of childhood vaccines. The sad reality is that now an even

^{11 &}lt;u>https://www.encyclopedia.com/science/encyclopedias-almanacs-transcripts-and-maps/mercury-element-0</u>

^{12 &}lt;a href="https://www.who.int/ipcs/assessment/public_health/mercury/en/">https://www.who.int/ipcs/assessment/public_health/mercury/en/

¹³ https://www.thoughtco.com/worst-elements-on-the-periodic-table-3989077 https://riordanclinic.org/2016/07/10-toxic-minerals/ https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/spl/index.html

higher dosage of mercury than ever before is used in today's yearly-promoted flu vaccines.

http://traceamounts.com/ten-lies-told-about-mercury-in-vaccines/

No matter how the vaccine manufacturers may want to skirt around the potentially murderous effects of their duplicity with mercury, the safety sheets, unbiased scientific studies, and the God-given common sense of the honest man still exposes the lie. Any amount of mercury in vaccines is violence against the body!

https://www.nj.gov/health/eoh/rtkweb/documents/fs/1183.pdf

https://www.gihonlab.com/wp-content/uploads/MSDS-THIMEROSAL-USA.pdf

https://www.cdhfinechemical.com/images/product/msds/133 1152494243 Thiomersal-CASNO-54-64-8-MSDS.pdf

http://traceamounts.com/scientific-papers-showing-linking-thimerosal-exposure-to-autism/

7. Aluminium

While most persons acknowledge aluminium simply as the material used as foil to conveniently wrap foods, and maybe they may know that the majority of cookware today is made up of aluminium, the vast majority have never sought to enquire how healthy or rather how toxic aluminium could be for their body. But just think about this, would you take an aluminium foil and eat it? Would you allow your innocent child to eat aluminium foil? If not, then you may have to take some time to rethink just what aluminium really is, and why it is used in vaccines.

One of the first things about aluminium which may shock you, comes from *Encycopedia.com*: "Aluminum is the only light element that has no known physiological function in the human body." ¹⁴ If you would like it any plainer, it means that even after centuries of observation, science has found that there is *no bodily function* which requires the presence of aluminium. The bottom line is aluminium has no use for the body; therefore we have no right to consciously put

 $[\]frac{14}{\text{num-alloys}} \\ \frac{\text{https://www.encyclopedia.com/science-and-technology/chemistry/compounds-and-elements/aluminum-alloys}{\text{num-alloys}} \\$

into our bodies that which God has made no provision. If we violate the natural laws of our being, we can surely expect to hurt ourselves and insult the One who designed those laws.

So we know for a fact that aluminium and our bodies should have no connection whatsoever (we need to re-assess our use of anti-perspirants, for one, which is composed mainly of aluminium hydroxide, which is used to unnaturally seal up our sweat pores). But what about aluminium outside of our bodies? What about aluminium and its popular chemical alloys and compounds which are commercially used? The following are official safety sheets for aluminium (original powder form), aluminium phosphate, and aluminium sulfate – of which aspects of each are all used in vaccine ingredients. The hazards are mind-blowing:

https://www.nj.gov/health/eoh/rtkweb/documents/fs/0054.pdf

https://www.nj.gov/health/eoh/rtkweb/documents/fs/0062.pdf

https://www.nj.gov/health/eoh/rtkweb/documents/fs/0068.pdf

The safety information tells us that, "...Aluminium production has been determined to be a human carcinogen." So the very process of getting aluminium out of the earth is admitted by science to be cancerous. Even for the compound *aluminium sulfate*, one should cringe when you learn the reality that the chemical name is actually "sulfuric acid." Disguised under the name *aluminium potassium sulfate*, these are the kinds of things which are being in placed in vaccines! Things you would run for your dear life to escape! But yet, it is routinely injected into human beings, claiming it will "preserve" their health. Why are the scientists doing this?

Why are the vaccine scientists doing this with aluminium, when legitimate scientific studies show that undue exposure to aluminium is neuro-toxic (brain damaging), liver-toxic, and a key player towards the toxic onset of Alzheimer's disease?¹⁶ Why are the vaccine scientists doing this when scientific papers show that *aluminium phosphate* in vaccines greatly increases the toxicity of co-existent mercury (listed as *thimerosal*)?¹⁷ Beloved, the key fact we should consider is this: if we clearly find it dangerous to eat aluminium, wear aluminium, even to breathe aluminium, how

^{15 &}lt;u>https://www.nj.gov/health/eoh/rtkweb/documents/fs/0054.pdf</u>

^{16 &}lt;a href="https://globalhealing.com/natural-health/concerned-about-aluminum-dangers/">https://globalhealing.com/natural-health/concerned-about-aluminum-dangers/

^{17 &}lt;u>http://www.truthwiki.org/mercury-in-vaccines/</u> https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4344667/

can one inject any form of this directly into the human body and dare to call it safe? Brothers and sisters, I think we have to admit that the health officials in the highest places, governing the health policy worldwide, have a different agenda than what we honest people would consider true health. There is a "health" today which results in death; and there is a health today which results in life. We must accept the true saving health of the Bible, from the instruction of the Scriptures (Psa.67:2). If we honour God, He will honour us (1 Sam.2:30); we cannot rely on scientism, which knows not God.

Beloved, thus far we have only taken a snapshot of seven abominable vaccine ingredients. There is so much more which could be said, and so much more ingredients one could highlight. Yet for sake of this being a Bible study, the point that these substances are poisonous for the body which God has given us – we believe that point has been sufficiently stated. We have no right, under the God of the Bible, to be consciously allowing any of those things to go into our bodies. In your own time, you may go in-depth in some other ingredients which have not the space to be detailed here. We list these substances with safety sheets and other information for your perusal/ongoing research where necessary:

8. Monosodium Glutamate

http://ehs.lilly.com/msds/Alimta_US%20SDS.pdf

https://spectrumrx.com/MSDS/G3200.pdf

9. Polysorbate 80

https://cameochemicals.noaa.gov/report?key=CH20939

10. Polysorbate 20

https://chemistryconnection.com/sds/data/pdf/Polysorbate_20_SDS.pdf

11. Gluteraldehyde

https://www.nj.gov/health/eoh/rtkweb/documents/fs/0960.pdf

12. Barium

https://www.nj.gov/health/eoh/rtkweb/documents/fs/0180.pdf

13. Sulfates:

a) Ammonium Sulfate

http://www.labchem.com/tools/msds/msds/LC11298.pdf

b) Neomycin Sulfate

https://www.zoetisus.com/contact/pages/product_information/MSDS_PI/ MSDS/Neomix_325_Soluble_Powder.pdf

14. Phosphates

http://www.ourphosphaterisk.com/issues/health-risks

15. Phenol

https://www.nj.gov/health/eoh/rtkweb/documents/fs/1487.pdf

16. Cetyltrimethylammonium Bromide (CTAB)

https://www.columbuschemical.com/MSDS/SDS/ Cetyltrimethylammonium%20Bromide%20(CTAB)%201320.pdf

17. Polymyxin B

https://www.zoetisus.com/contact/pages/product_information/msds_pi/ msds/terramycin_ophthalmic_ointment.pdf

From this point, beloved, now having been sufficiently informed as to what is admittedly in vaccines, we shall get light from the Bible as to why these things are being unapologetically used, and what is the agenda behind it. What God's Word has to say may shock you!

Chapter 2

A Shocking Biblical Link between Vaccination and Sorcery

Does the Bible speak of vaccinations under the category of sorcery? What does sorcery actually mean as it is expressed in the Bible? How significant of an issue does the Bible make of sorcery? If sorcery is linked to vaccination, what should I as a Bible-believer do?

Examining Sorcery as expressed in the Bible

We begin this examination of *sorcery* with a very portentous passage of Scripture, which is to have its fulfilment in these last days:

Revelation 18:21,23 (KJV) ²¹And a mighty angel took up a stone like a great millstone, and cast it into the sea, saying, Thus with violence shall that great city *Babylon* be thrown down, and shall be found no more at all. . . ²³And the light of a candle shall shine no more at all in thee[Babylon]; and the voice of the bridegroom and of the bride shall be heard no more at all in thee[Babylon]: for thy merchants were the great men of the earth; for by thy sorceries^[Gr.pharmakeia<G5331>] were all nations deceived.

What we all need to notice above, beloved, is that there is a power referred to as *Babylon*. Apparently this power has formidable civil authority, because it is termed *that great city*. This power also has pervasive economic authority, for Babylon had

merchants (financial connections), of whom are termed the great men of the earth. And lastly – the detail which we all must pay attention to here – is that Babylon used sorceries to deceive all the nations of the earth. Having such overwhelming influence, via its civil and economic power, Babylon is able to deceive all nations through the agency of sorceries. What we need to answer here very carefully, in order to uncover this last-day operation of Babylon, is what is meant by sorceries. Prepare to find out, with these helpful resources from Biblehub:

(https://biblehub.com/greek/5331.htm):

◆ 5331. pharmakeia ▶

Strong's Concordance

pharmakeia: the use of medicine, drugs or spells

Original Word: φαρμακεία, ας, ἡ Part of Speech: Noun, Feminine Transliteration: pharmakeia Phonetic Spelling: (far-mak-i'-ah)

Definition: the use of medicine, drugs or spells

Usage: magic, sorcery, enchantment.

HELPS Word-studies

5331 *pharmakeía* (from *pharmakeuō*, "administer drugs") – properly, drug-related sorcery, like the practice of magical-arts, etc. (A. T. Robertson).

Englishman's Concordance

Galatians 5:20 N-NFS

GRK: είδωλολατρία φαρμακεία έχθραι έρις

NAS: idolatry, sorcery, enmities, strife,

KJV: Idolatry, *witchcraft*, hatred, INT: idolatry *sorcery* enmities strife

Revelation 18:23 N-DFS

GRK: ἐν τῆ φαρμακεία σου ἐπλανήθησαν

NAS: were deceived by your sorcery.

KJV: by thy sorceries were all

INT: by the *sorcery* of you were misled

Strong's Greek 5331

2 Occurrences

φαρμακεία - 2 Occ.

Thayer's Greek Lexicon

STRONGS NT 5331: φαρμακεία

φαρμακεία (WH κια, so T (except in Galatians 5:20; cf. the Proleg., p. 88); see Iota), φαρμακείας, ἡ (φαρμακεύω);

- a. the use or the administering of drugs (Xenophon, mem. 4, 2, 17).
- **b. poisoning** (Plato, Polybius, others): Revelation 9:21 (here WH text Tr marginal reading φαρμακῶν; many interpretations refer the passage to the next entry).
- c. sorcery, magical arts, often found in connection with idolatry and fostered by it: Galatians 5:20 (where see Lightfoot) (Wis. 12:4 Wis. 18:13; for לָּטִים, Isaiah 47:9; for לָּטִים, Exodus 7:22; Exodus 8:18; for לָּהָטִים, Exodus 7:11); tropically, of the deceptions and seductions of idolatry, Revelation 18:23.

STRONGS NT 5331: φάρμακον [φάρμακον, φαρμάκου, τό, from Homer down, a drug; an enchantment: Tr marginal reading WH text in Revelation 9:21 (R. V. sorceries), for φαρμακεία, which see (in b.).]

Have you noticed, beloved, what the *sorceries* of Revelation 18:23 – which is *pharmakeia* in the original Greek – have you noticed what that word actually means?

The historically reliable lexicographers tell you very clearly that *pharmakeia* means the use of drug medication! Yes, the Greek translation *pharmakeia* is a direct root for the modern word *pharmacy*. Now, whether anyone would *like* to think that *pharmakeia* is a neutral thing (neither good nor bad) is not the point here; the point is that the Bible tells you that Babylon will be using the medium of *drug medication* to deceive all nations. That is what the Bible is telling us; this is God's Word. Will you believe it and realize the inherent conclusions?

Notice here that there is something even more shocking, having to do with the *kind* of drug medication Babylon will be using to deceive all nations. To understand we need to ask ourselves some pertinent questions regarding the biblical passage in focus. Ask yourself, is there a certain kind of drug medication that is now generally recommended in *all nations* worldwide as a pre-requisite for good health, whether you are a newborn baby or of noble age? Is there a certain kind of drug medication that has now generally garnered civil and economic penalties worldwide if one is not willing to receive it? Is there a certain kind of drug medication for which many *great men* of the earth (men with the greatest wealth, magnates¹⁸) are now heavily invested in *merchandizing*, seeking to have every human being as a subject to these drug medications? And finally, is there a certain kind of drug medication,

Revelation 18:23 (Complete Apostles' Bible)>> "... Your merchants were the magnates of the earth, for by your sorcery all the nations were deceived."

encompassing all the above characteristic aforementioned, about which all nations are actually *deceived* as to the actual safety and efficacy of this drug medication – believing that this kind of drug medication is safe and effective, when it is really the opposite?

Well, anyone who has honestly done their homework to investigate these characteristics as revealed by John's prophecy, will come to the shocking conclusion that only one kind of drug medication fits all the above criteria – and that one drug medication is VACCINES! Yes, vaccines are drug medications injected directly into the bodies of human beings. Every scientist, nay every literate person, should be able to know, by the very ingredients publicly admitted and listed on every insert, that vaccines are drug medication.

Vaccines are now recommended by all nations as a pre-requisite for good health for all ages. Vaccines now carry both civil and economic ramifications, as national states seek to enforce their administering, and the money magnates of the world merchandise their production and deployment. Babylon is really that *great city*, which courts as *merchants the great men of the earth*. And the one significant instrument through which Babylon, alongside its merchants, will use to deceive the whole world is vaccination – the direct administering of drug medication via inoculation. These facts may seem unbelievable at first; but as clear as the prophecy does speak, and as clear as these events which are taking place in our last-day generation fall right into line, such a conclusion is hard to go around. Vaccines have a role to play in end-time prophecy; vaccines are the sorceries, the *pharmakeia* of Revelation 18:23.

Now the question may arise in the mind of the conscientious Christian: If vaccines are part of a worldwide deception, how should I react to it in order to be right with God? Well, the first thing we ought to do is to accept God's clear prophetic indication that vaccines are ultimately the tools of wicked men; vaccines are being used by Babylon in the last days to deceive the world in the worst way possible.

To give you a deeper comparison of just how God's Word views *pharmakeia*, we can look at the two other instances in the New Testament where the word is used:

Revelation 9:21 (KJV) Neither repented they of their murders, nor of their sorceries^[Gr.pharmakeia<G5331>], nor of their fornication, nor of their thefts.

Galatians 5:19-21 (KJV) ¹⁹Now the *works of the flesh* are manifest, which are these; Adultery, fornication, uncleanness, lasciviousness, ²⁰Idolatry, witchcraft^[Gr.pharmakeia<G5331>], hatred, variance, emulations, wrath, strife, seditions, heresies, ²¹Envyings, murders, drunkenness, revellings, and such like: of the which I tell you before, as I have also told you in time past, that *they which do such things shall not inherit the kingdom of God*.

As you would be able to see above, God's Word, coming from two individual prophets, denounces *pharmakeia* as being of the sinful class, alongside things like murder, hatred, wrath, theft, fornication, drunkenness, etc. Beloved, in the eyes of our Creator the use of drug medication is no light thing; in fact, if we wilfully use it after receiving light that it is a sin which God condemns, we need to realize that we shall not inherit the kingdom of God. Let us not play with God's Word. That is what it says!

Therefore, one of the most serious conclusions that our Lord is placing before us, if we would be saved in His kingdom (especially in these last days), is to avoid drug medication. If drug medication comes in the form of processed or genetically modified foods, avoid it; if drug medication comes in the form of toxic household and environmental products, avoid it; if drug medication comes in the form of elective allopathic medical procedures, do all that is available in God's will to avoid it.

How to decipher Drug Medication from God-given Natural Remedies

In the progress of this *pharmakeia* question, further queries such as these may be pondered by sincere souls: How will I be able to tell what is a drug medication? How can I tell the difference between what is a *drug medication* and what a *true*, *natural*, *God-given remedy*? To help such concerns, I yield two references which give the true black and white nature between drug medication and natural remedies. The first comes from a very honest proponent modern-day science:

A drug—whether or not psychoactive—is a term that still means what Hippocrates and Galen, fathers of scientific medicine, understood it to mean millennia ago: a substance that instead of being "overcome" by the body (and assimilated in nutrition) is instead capable of "overcoming" it while provoking—in ridiculously small doses compared with those of other foods—large changes:

organic, or in mood, or in both.

- Antonio Escohotado; A Brief History of Drugs: From the Stone Age to the Stoned Age (1999); page 1

Therefore, in basic terms, according to the honest historical research of Dr. Escohotado, a *drug* is a substance that is capable of *overcoming the body, provoking large changes* (side effects) as a result. By contrast, Dr. Escohotado implicitly reveals what is a natural remedy – a natural substance which the body is able *to overcome*, the body is able to *assimilate* it for the purposes of *nutrition*. The drug carries overmastering properties, with likely side effects; the natural remedy possesses assimilative properties (complementary to bodily function, nutrition and restoration), with no intrinsic side effects. Can we see a serious difference here? I hope to God that you do.

The second notable reference comes from the most translated non-fiction female author of all time, one recognized by the *Smithsonian Magazine* in 2015 as among the 100 most significant Americans of all time, and among the 10 most influential American religious figures. ¹⁹ Mrs. Ellen G. White (1827-1915) – a dedicated Christian visionary who wrote much by divine inspiration, even speaking definitively on issues related to health, enunciating scientific truths decades before mainstream science officially adopted them – was privileged by God to share the true distinction between natural remedies and drug medication:

There are many ways of practicing the healing art, but there is only one way that Heaven approves. God's remedies are the simple agencies of nature that will not tax or debilitate the system through their powerful properties. Pure air and water, cleanliness, a proper diet, purity of life, and a firm trust in God are remedies for the want of which thousands are dying; yet these remedies are going out of date because their skillful use requires work that the people do not appreciate. Fresh air, exercise, pure water, and clean, sweet premises are within the reach of all with but little expense, but drugs are expensive, both in the outlay of means and in the effect produced upon the system.

- Ellen G. White; Testimonies for the Church, Volume 5 (1889); page 443

In very clear language, according to Sis. White, natural remedies are, "the simple

^{19 &}lt;u>https://www.adventistreview.org/church-news/ellen-g.-white-named-among-100-most-significant-americans</u>

 $[\]underline{https://www.smithsonianmag.com/smithsonianmag/meet-100-most-significant-americans-all-time-180953341/?no-ist}$

agencies of nature that will not tax or debilitate the system through their powerful properties". In clear contrast, she explains that drug medications are, "expensive, both in the outlay of means and in the effect produced upon the system". So the difference is clear. *Natural remedies* are the substances which come strictly from nature, are easily assimilated by the body and effective toward overcoming disease, with no side effects. *Drug medications* are those substances which can come from any array of sources – whether biological, chemical, synthetic etc. – with their properties serving to overpower the body, displace symptoms (not cure disease), and then finally leave the body with palpable side effects. Beloved, just as it even attested in the work of Dr. Escohotado, we believe just as much that no honest scientist would deny that these are the true distinctions between a drug and a natural remedy. Natural remedies and drug medications are two different classes of phenomena, especially when it comes to the treatment of disease. I believe at this point you can determine very clearly which one of the two should be chosen by the Bible-believing Christian.

Vaccines used as the Last-day Pharmakeia of choice to deceive all nations

I believe that the honest in heart, reading with care the prophetic narrative of John surrounding Revelation 18:23, should be convinced that vaccines alone fulfil that exact role as a worldwide tool of medical deception. Vaccines are drug medication: their ingredients do overpower the body, they do displace certain symptoms for a time (yet do not actually cure), and they do leave palpable side effects. Worse, due to the fact that Babylon – earth's most sinister religious, civil and economic power combined in one – is using them to fulfil its plan of worldwide domination, the people of God should be that much more vigilant to avoid any conscientious cooperation with that agenda.

Knowing that the biblical, truthful reality is that vaccines have never cured disease, but rather, the very methodology of vaccines causes disease, we must conscientiously object to this agenda. If we are conscious health reformers, and Seventh Day Adventists in particular, we have no excuse in being a part of the deceived of all nations, duped by *pharmakeia's* vaccines. Indeed, the most popularly celebrated, world-renowned health reformer within SDA history – Dr, John Harvey Kellogg – posited the possibility from over 100 years ago that the vaccine agenda could take authoritarian overtones:

But if you are vaccinated from a calf that has tuberculosis, then you get consumption. So you see that is not altogether safe. I believe there is something better on principle than that, and I am going to try to show you some disease with disease, and the man who is vaccinated is a little lower in vitality after he has been vaccinated than before. It is like a boy who becomes immune to the use of tobacco. At first it makes him sick, but afterward he becomes used to it, and it does not affect him; yet it is doing the boy harm all the time. It is thought by some scientists that the time will soon come when vaccination will be employed for all maladies in the earth. It has been said by Dr. Lancaster, of London, that the time will come when a young man taking a course in a medical school would, before he finished, be vaccinated for all diseases that were prevalent in the country. I do not think there would be very much left of that man after he had gone through all that. It has been proved that when a man has had small-pox, he is more subject to consumption than before.

- Dr. John Harvey Kellogg, General Conference Daily Bulletin, February 21, 1899, pg.44

And what was Dr. Kellogg's conclusive observation of the whole vaccination situation in the end times? Hear his encouraging exhortation to all who would adopt the health reform principles as given by God to Seventh Day Adventists to share with the world:

As I said before, this method of obtaining immunity against disease is the method of fighting disease with disease, meeting evil with evil, antidoting poison with poison. . . . This method of fighting disease with disease is the human way of meeting disease, just as we fight fire with fire. But God has given us a truth [health reform] that has in it power to lift a man above the power of disease. He has given us principles which, *if we obey and follow, will change our bodies so that we shall not have to be vaccinated; that will lift the body above the power of disease*, and above the power of sin; for sin and disease go along together. Disease is the consequence of sin, and sin induces a moral disease.

- Dr. John Harvey Kellogg, General Conference Daily Bulletin, February 21, 1899, pg.44

Beloved, for the vaccine *pharmakeia* agenda of these last days, God has given us a

timely response – health reform. Have you been health reforming as you should? The efficacy of your health reform habits may well be an early test in these last days, which will determine whether you shall pass onto the final test of earth's history. Like as Daniel, Hananiah, Mishael, and Azariah had the early test of health reform (Daniel 1), which in turn prepared them for the test of the fiery furnace (Daniel 3), and the lion's den (Daniel 6) respectively, we must realize now, more than ever, that health reform shall be a determining factor in overcoming the vaccine agenda of these last days. I appeal, by the name of Christ, that you make such reforms now, before the test comes to your door to find you unprepared, and there is no further recourse. He that hath ears to hear, let him hear!

Chapter 3

Vaccination and the Law of God

How does the issue of vaccination have anything to do with keeping God's commandments? Is there a particular commandment we could see violated by our conscious participation in vaccination? Knowing what vaccination really is, can we endorse this procedure, and still receive the Bible affirmation, "here are they that keep the commandments of God and the faith of Jesus"?

Beloved, as we approach these pertinent questions, let us note some related passages from the Scriptures:

1 John 5:2-3 (KJV) ²By this we know that we love the children of God, when we love God, and keep his commandments. ³For *this is the love of God, that we keep his commandments:* and his commandments are not grievous.

Exodus 20:7 (KJV) Thou shalt not take the name of the LORD thy God in vain; for the LORD will not hold him guiltless that taketh his name in vain.

Exodus 20:13 (KJV) Thou shalt not kill. Exodus 20:13 (YLT) You shall not murder.

Exodus 20:16 (KJV) Thou shalt not bear false witness against thy neighbour. Exodus 20:16 (YLT) You shall not testify a witness of falsehood against your

neighbour.

Exodus 23:2 (LXXE) Thou shalt not associate with the multitude for evil; thou shalt not join thyself with a multitude to turn aside with the majority so as to shut out judgment.

Romans 13:10 (KJV) Love worketh *no ill* to his neighbour: therefore love is the fulfilling of the law.

Now, you may ask, what do all these Scriptures have to do with vaccination and the Law of God? Notice the following startling connections:

Vaccination and the Commandments in general

A first thing you can note from the Scriptures listed is, that true love between both God and humanity is embedded within the commandments (1 John 5:2-3; Rom.13:10). The claim is made that vaccination is done in love, to protect the children in particular. It is to save lives, the vaccine proponents would say, belting the mantra of "public safety" from the rooftops all day and all night. But how can vaccinations be in harmony with love, in harmony with the commandments of God, when the very use of vaccinations assumes the knowledge that human beings will get hurt as a direct result of vaccinations? Barring the utterly ignorant and wilfully blind, every person who has any documented knowledge about vaccines, nay, even the very producers and manufacturers of vaccines will always admit that there are inherent "side effects" to every vaccine. "Side effects" which even some insert labels of vaccines will tell you can result in death.²⁰ In other words, the principle of mass and mandatory vaccination is rooted in, and accepting of the reality that some will even die as a result of the vaccination. Nevertheless, to the vaccine industry, these possibilities are "all worth it in the end." As they love to say, "The benefits outweigh the risks." The vaccine industry is satisfied that they have performed a job well done, if only a fraction of the populace dies from the vaccine they have produced. If this is what anyone can call "love" and "public safety," then such have no true conception of the commandments of God's kingdom; and barring repentance, they will never have a place in God's kingdom either. At even so-called "best-practices" level, mass and mandatory vaccination is completely antithetical to true love, to the commandments of God. I repeat the enlightening words of the apostle Paul with

20

emphasis, "Love worketh *no ill* to his neighbour: therefore love is the fulfilling of the law." (Rom.13:10)

To show how you how warped this kind of mass vaccination principle is when compared to the law of love principle found in the Word of God, we need only to turn to the now infamous US Code 300aa-22, specifically addressing the liability of vaccine manufacturers in light of the "unavoidable adverse side effects," even "deaths" caused by vaccines. Take a look at two unbelievable excerpts from this legal code, in place since 1986:

No vaccine manufacturer shall be liable in a civil action for damages arising from a vaccine-related injury or death associated with the administration of a vaccine after October 1, 1988, if the injury or death resulted from side effects that were unavoidable even though the vaccine was properly prepared and was accompanied by proper directions and warnings.

No vaccine manufacturer shall be liable in a civil action for damages arising from a vaccine-related injury or death associated with the administration of a vaccine after October 1, 1988, solely due to the manufacturer's failure to provide direct warnings to the injured party (or the injured party's legal representative) of the potential dangers resulting from the administration of the vaccine manufactured by the manufacturer.²¹

- National Childhood Vaccine Injury Act, 42 U. S. C., § 300aa-22 (1986)

Beloved, have you taken in what the US lawmakers enshrined into law regarding vaccines, on a dark day in 1986? They made it federal law that once a vaccine manufacturer satisfies the government's definition of "proper," the manufacturer cannot be prosecuted if that same "proper" vaccine is administered and kills someone as a result. In the collective words of the lawmakers, a vaccine is still acceptable and necessary wherein, "injury or death resulted from side effects that were *unavoidable*." In other words, in the vaccine world, the possibility of injury and death from administering a vaccine, is something legally *unavoidable*. They are telling you that there is nothing that can be put in place to avoid the possibility of death to you or your child; mass vaccinations must go on despite. If a few die as a result of "green-lighted" vaccine products, that is just an *unavoidable* consequence. And worse, the vaccine manufacturers have no liability to give victims or their families a red cent. That is just how much the theory of mass vaccination values your

^{21 &}lt;a href="https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/300aa-22">https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/300aa-22

life and the life of your child – if we are the unfortunate victims of adverse vaccine reactions, we are nothing more than *collateral damage*. The vaccine manufacturers are allowed to "inadvertently" kill you, yet face no liability; and on top of all of that make billions of dollars in contracts to inoculate their *pharmakeia* into the bodies of potentially every single human being upon the face of the earth.

Beloved, the Unites States, through this US Code 300aa-22 on its own, has charted the authoritarian mass vaccination mindset in the developed world, while the developing countries are merely guinea pigs for these "humanitarian-sponsored" vaccine programs. If such a law had not been passed in the U.S.A. on a dark day in 1986, we probably would be looking at a different world today, where vaccine choice, at the very least, would still be a general option. But sadly, today, among all nations without exception, the perception has been cemented that all need to be vaccinated despite the risks involved. Most, the world over, are not even told that there are any risks whatsoever regarding vaccines. The utterly false mantra, "vaccines are safe and effective" rolls off the lips of all those who have never taken the time to read a single vaccine insert, look up any of these clearly risky vaccine ingredients, or read an unbiased scientific study on the effects of vaccines. Yet those who manufacture vaccines know all these risks are there; and yet these same manufacturers are content, for profit sake, to allow the public campaign of general vaccine ignorance to be maintained. The ignorance has found its way into draconian legislation, wherein in many countries, particularly the developing countries, it is illegal to not have your child on the mandated vaccination schedule. You are liable to hefty fines or even imprisonment for not complying. This is where the world is now; just as Revelation 18:23 told us, by the vaccine pharmakeia, all nations have been deceived.

Now, knowing all of this, we should be able to see how mass vaccination is a total repudiation of the law of God in general. Vaccination *takes the name of the Lord in vain* as it tells everyone that God did not make human beings with an inherent physiology to overcome the problem of sickness we would experience as a result of sin. To validate vaccination is to say that God could not enable his human creation to withstand disease by obeying His own natural laws, but that scientists have done better by using the same disease to fight disease. Essentially, in advocating vaccination as the saviour of public health today, you are saying that scientists have done a one-up on God. You are saying that so many would have died without the scientists' counter-intuitive vaccine invention. You are saying God could not preserve humanity by the very way He created them, but that scientists had to come

up with a strange, novel way of saving humanity with poisonous chemicals. You are saying scientism has trumped God's watch-care. You are placing the "scientists" above God. You are *taking the name of the Lord in vain*.

By advocating mass vaccination, you also bear false witness against your neighbour in that patients are never told the entire truth about the inherent risks involved in vaccination. No conscientious parent, if told every last possible risk of harm to their child posed by a vaccine, would ever think to subject their child to all those risks. If they had a true choice, they would not vaccinate at all. There is more security in leaving vaccination entirely alone and living healthily, than by taking any vaccine whatsoever. But neither vaccine manufacturers, nor the allopathic medical industry wholesale, has EVER taken the time to tell the general public the entire truth about vaccine risks. By default, the very vaccine industry and all its complicit players, including civilian advocates, are bearing false witness against their neighbour. Anything short of declaring the known, fulsome truth is bearing false witness.

It is the same thing when you try to scare your neighbour to be vaccinated, rather than looking at the weight of evidence with an objective mind, and allowing one another to make their own informed decision. The vast majority of mass vaccination efforts are rooted in deception; they are a violation of the ninth commandment, and a violation of the one's freedom of conscience to do what is right according to the fair presentation of the entire evidence. The mass vaccination paradigm today is one of, "Fall in line with what the authorities and majority say and do, regardless of the objective evidence, or else..." In many cases, regardless of your conscientious reasons, you are not allowed certain health and social services (health care, schooling, travel, etc.) if you are not appropriately vaccinated. There are many, totally unconvinced by the vaccine propaganda, who allow themselves and their children to be vaccinated anyway, because the sanctions for standing out in conscientious independence are just too great to handle. For many informed, well-meaning people, the vaccination situation is clearly a most difficult matter with which to deal. However beloved, God's Word tells us, "Thou shalt not join thyself with a multitude to turn aside with the majority so as to shut out judgment." (Exo.23:2, LXX). We are commanded by God not to follow the majority if we know for a fact that their consensus is antithetical to truth and evidence. We all may yet have bolder decisions to make in the future.

Vaccination and the Sixth Commandment in Particular

Beloved, if there was any of the Ten Commandments which is particularly at issue in the cause of vaccination, it is the sixth commandment, "Thou shalt not kill [murder]." How significant are the words, "Thou shalt not kill," with regard to vaccination? Enormously significant. Why so? Because the very *principle* of vaccination, the very *nature* of the vaccines themselves, carry within them health and life destroying elements. Beloved, we have already seen the admitted ingredients in the vaccines, many of which are unbelievably hazardous. Beloved, we have already seen that the vaccine manufacturers and their complicit law and policy makers know that some will be injured or die as a direct cause of "proper" vaccines. We know vaccines are drugs – drugs by definition are so identified because they have the property of inherent side effects. We know at the very best, vaccination is the effort of trying to use disease to fight disease. The entire structure of vaccination methodology is built on disease, side effects and death. How can any God-fearing person think that the sixth commandment is not particularly at stake on the issue of vaccines?

To whichever degree any person is inoculated with vaccines, every vaccine intervention is a positive step toward death. Beloved, unless God Himself has preserved you in your particular faith circumstance, you cannot expect that a knowledgeable reception of drugs, poisons or disease into your body will have no debilitating effect. At best, you are being *soft-killed*. The allergies, auto-immune conditions, cancers, internal heavy metal toxicity, paralysis, autism, post-birth defects, etc., are all evidences of the soft-killing that is taking place, either by our own consent, or of the unfortunate consent of parents toward their children. And the more you knowledgeably consent to this intervention, the more you should logically expect that the soft-kill must get worse, to an inevitable result. Vaccination is a life and death issue: make no qualms about it.

Beloved, when God pronounced, "Thou shalt not kill," He meant it both in letter and in spirit. The source from which all human life springs, is exclusively the prerogative of God. Human beings of themselves cannot *give* life, they cannot *create* life. Therefore, to consciously take the life of another human being is clearly a violation of *Thou shalt not kill*. To take one's own life, *suicide*, is also clearly a violation of *Thou shalt not kill*. Now, for these last two examples, the evidences of them will generally be external and spontaneous. You would be able to judge them accordingly because the actions which brought about death were attributable to a

specific moment in time. For example, someone shot another, or shot themselves, and a fatal wound found on a lifeless body would declare the reality of what took place. Now as unfortunate as such evidence would be, it would be much easier to decipher what happened at the time when life was extinguished. Cause and effect would show itself at such a scene.

But, what about those situations where life was not lost in an instantaneous moment of time? What if someone took constant inhalations of nicotine day by day, knowing the gradual harm smoking presents? And the inevitable lung cancer now has them stricken down, to an eventual death-bed, only for life to finally be extinguished after their lungs fully collapse? Did that person's choices kill them? Were they not virtually committed to a suicidal life, the moment they decided to wilfully maintain a life-destroying habit? Did they not kill themselves? Could not the same be said about all other life-destroying lifestyles, food consumption habits, substance abuse, among other conscious decisions we make which we know are directly harmful to our health? Have any of us been guilty of a *gradual suicide* by habit? The fact is there is murder that takes place *gradually*.

Beloved, this author is not opening eyes to a novel revelation. There are deep thinkers in history who have made such observations. And I am disposed to highlight one particular female author once again. Her words are physiologically and spiritually sound, regarding the relation of our habits to the Law of God:

If we pursue a course to lessen our vitality, and sickness and death are the result, it is a violation of the law of God. To shorten life by self-murder is a breach of the sixth precept of God's law. He has not granted us permission to commit suicide gradually any more than he has given us a permit to commit suicide suddenly. While one puts out existence at once, the other does the work according to approved fashion. The fashionable suicides, by wrong and sinful habits, commit suicide gradually, prolonging their own suffering, and casting a heavy burden upon sympathizing friends. Which is the greater sinner?

- Ellen G. White; The Health Reformer, January 1, 1873, par. 1

Beloved, I would put it you, on the basis of God's Word, that vaccination is one of the "fashionable" forms of gradual "suicide" and "homicide." "Suicide" – on the part of us who wilfully take these things into our bodies, knowing they have injurious

effects; and "homicide" on the part of those who manufacture and administer these poisons, knowing the harmful ingredients which are in them, and their potential to ultimately kill. There is no such thing as a "safe and healthy" vaccine; if there was such, vaccines would not be artificially protected by a legal clause which says vaccine injury or death in some cases is "unavoidable." 22 Vaccines are drugs; drugs have harmful side effects. Every drug, namely every vaccine, contains life-destroying chemicals. Therefore, vaccines are a form of biocide; their knowledgeable use is a violation of the sixth commandment. And those, especially in the last days, acknowledging themselves as Christians, who are called to keep the commandments of God, and the faith of Jesus - such cannot be wilful, conscious recipients of vaccinations (Rev.14:12). Such are to be aware of the pharmakeia deception of Babylon (Rev.18:23), and through conscientious objection, based on their belief of Scripture, make it known that they cannot serve Christ and knowingly receive a vaccination. Just like God did for Daniel, Hananiah, Azariah and Mishael in ancient Babylon – rescuing from the fiery furnace and the lion's den – the Lord can and will work for us mightily, during the times of last-day Babylon. Let us trust God's Word and character.

Even before the final test, which is the *mark of the beast*, every sincere last-day Christian needs to recognize that earlier tests will spring up to prove our true fidelity to God. The vaccination question is such an early test, and if we cannot stand up for the Word of God now on this point, we shall no further advance in our spiritual walk, onward to the final test. Those who fail the vaccination test by conforming, offering no objection from the Word of God, will be weighed in the balances and found wanting. Let us not be among the worldly conformists; let it be said of us, "And they overcame him by the blood of the Lamb, and by the word of their testimony; and they loved not their lives unto the death." (Rev.12:11)

Conclusion

Beloved, we have all seen that there is really something significant about vaccination in these last days. We would have certainly found that God's Word is really opening up mightily at this time, and has given us abundant answers as to how Biblebelieving Christians should be responding to this agenda of scientism. Sincere eyes have already seen the deception behind vaccination; sincere eyes have seen the physical and mental damage done to themselves and their children. Thousands, if not millions, have clearly observed many of these unfortunate adverse events, coming to pass right after an inoculation from a soft-kill needle. They know it is one of the greatest lies ever promulgated over the last century. And now, all such sincere souls can know for a fact that the God of the Bible condemns this practice, and has exposed the last-day effort to advance this agenda.

We have seen the Saviour of our world, Jesus Christ, declare that people who are *whole* – with all their faculties intact – need no intervention from a physician (Mark 2:17). We have seen that the Lord is the true Preserver of our health, from the womb to the grave (Psa.139:13-16). If we live in harmony with God's natural laws, the theory of vaccination is put to a crying shame. We need no intervention but God's.

We have seen furthermore that our bodies are not our own, and we have to give account at the judgment seat of Christ for what we knowingly allowed to be done to our bodies during our lifetime (1 Cor.6:19-20; 2 Cor.5:10). We have seen that God only permits us to consume pure foods and medicinal herbs. All other things: drugs/chemicals, unclean foods, blood, fat, flesh meats included, are forbidden. We need not fathom that anything other than what God has prescribed as constituting pure foods and medicinal herbs should be allowed into our bodies. That is our only safe course as Christians.

We have seen the abominable ingredients, toxic chemicals, and objectionable processes used to manufacture vaccines. We can tell that there must be some agenda

to harm us, or so many disgusting, anti-human things could never be fathomed to give anything other than eventual death to those receiving them.

We have seen that vaccination is the sorcery, the drug, the *pharmakeia* of these last days, enlisted by Babylon to deceive all nations. We have seen that vaccines are the only particular drug which meets all the criteria of the prophecy of Revelation 18:23. And we are seeing the agenda play out right before our very eyes.

We have seen that vaccination is a violation of the Law of God in so many ways. We have seen that the human laws governing mass and mandatory vaccination are crafted to absolve any responsibility pertaining to injury and death directly attributable to the vaccine. Vaccination and its forceful administration, is not rooted in love, the ultimate expression of the Law of God, but rather it is rooted in deception, profit, and the disregard for the life of every individual human being. We have seen that at best, vaccination is a soft-kill, and at worst, it has to the potential to become a weapon of mass human destruction. In particular, the sacred words of Jehovah, "Thou shalt not kill," is an incontrovertible rebuke to vaccination.

We have been apprised of the myriad of issues at stake here, and how they all culminate together to agree that vaccination is not of God, but an invention of the devil himself. So-called scientists, modern-day sorcerers, the majority of which are godless individuals, take vaccination as the greatest evidence of their atheistic validity. Shall we stand on the Word of God and the sound reasoning it entails? Or shall we stand on the opinions, the projections, the models, the speculations, the contradictions, the corruptions, the deceptions of scientism, which knows not God, nor Jesus Christ, whom He has sent? Shall we be among those who will err concerning the Faith, believing the "science" falsely so-called? Or shall we be among those who will live by every Word that proceeds out of the mouth of God; that keep the commandments of God and the faith of Jesus?

The divide is clear, beloved, and unambiguous. Either you stand *with* vaccination – birthed, cradled, and perpetuated by godless scientism; or you stand *against* vaccination – conscientious objection to vaccines, which is fully proven and supported by the Word of God, beyond a shadow of doubt. If we once were confused before, there is no more room to plead ignorance. God has spoken and I believe God; it is that simple. It is my prayer that you shall stand upon His Word, that you may advance to the very end and at last be saved. Stand for the right, though the heavens fall; you will receive a crown of life for your fidelity. There were no

vaccines at the beginning of creation nor after sin entered; there were no vaccines among the chosen of Israel; there were no vaccines advocated by Christ during His time on earth; there were no vaccines amongst the faithful apostolic church; there were no vaccines amongst the faithful of the Dark Ages. And in these last days we are particularly warned not to be deceived concerning vaccines. There will be no vaccines in heaven and in the earth made new. Therefore, let us separate ourselves from any affiliation with vaccination, and leave its use to perish with the godless agents who maintain and advocate it. I pray the expression of your heart may be: "Objecting against vaccination because of Scripture, here I stand and can do no other; so help me God." May God give us all such courage in this grand and awful time. The grace of the Lord Jesus Christ be with you.

Amen.